
Regular Meeting Minutes - March 7, 2005

file:///C|/Users/craig.CORP/Documents/Teleport%20Downloads/wethersfieldct_tc/wethersfieldct.com/TC/2005/2005-03-07r.html[8/22/2012 1:15:17 PM]

MARCH 7, 2005
REGULAR MEETING

The Wethersfield Town Council held a meeting on Monday, March 7, 2005 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of
the Town Hall.

Present: Councilors Adil (8:30), Czernicki, Forrest, Fortunato, Hemmann (7:45), Montinieri, Deputy Mayor
Karangekis and Chairperson Morin.

Absent: Councilor Cascio.

Also present: Bonnie Therrien, Town Manager, and Dolores G. Sassano, Town Clerk.

All stood for the pledge of allegiance to the flag which was led by Councilor Czernicki.

Chairperson Morin announced that a special meeting was held prior to the regular meeting in order to tour the lower
level of Town Hall and view the progress being made on the renovations. He also announced that there will be an
executive session following the regular meeting to discuss pending litigation.

Economic Development Report

Town Planner Peter Gillespie gave a presentation of the February, 2005 Economic Development Report which
included the following:

Ribbon cutting for Starbucks Coffee is scheduled for March 18
Relocated Blockbuster Video opened on February 18
376 Silas Deane Highway, small psychology practice opened
151 Silas Deane Highway, Mercury Fuel Service, Inc. opening in March
271 Main Street, Main Street Creamery, opening soon
1825 Berlin Turnpike, Bob's Fruit Stand, grand reopening scheduled for April
1030 Silas Deane Highway, Philippine Restaurant opening in April
1295 Silas Deane Highway, Office Depot, grand opening March 10
1855 Berlin Turnpike, Cumberland Farms, Inc., demolition and construction to begin shortly
1532 Berlin Turnpike, Nathan Hale Apartments, approvals issued and construction to begin in the Spring
Folly Brook Boulevard, Age Restricted Housing, permit process under way and construction to begin soon

Mr. Gillespie reported that the Silas Deane Highway Revitalization Committee is currently interviewing landscape
architecture firms and they would like to initiate a North Gateway project for plantings in the Spring as well as an
Adopt A Tree program. He said that the February 28 edition of the Hartford Business Journal featured an article on the
Office Depot in the Goff Brook Shops and offered positive comments on the Silas Deane Highway. Mr. Gillespie
announced that on April 30 the Chamber of Commerce will be holding their annual fundraising event to support their
scholarship program and that the Connecticut River Community Bank Business After Hours is scheduled for March 8.
Mr. Gillespie announced that the annual State of the Town address will be held on May 5 at Wethersfield Country
Club and that the EDIC will be holding their quarterly Realtors Breakfast on March 16 also at the Wethersfield
Country Club.

Councilor Montinieri read from the Hartford Business Journal article stating that the positive comments are great
coverage for promoting Wethersfield.

D'Esopo 100th Anniversary

Chairperson Morin introduced and welcomed Janet Klett from D'Esopo Funeral Chapel.

Ms. Klett announced that the Town has the opportunity to participate in D'Esopo's 100th Anniversary celebration by



Regular Meeting Minutes - March 7, 2005

file:///C|/Users/craig.CORP/Documents/Teleport%20Downloads/wethersfieldct_tc/wethersfieldct.com/TC/2005/2005-03-07r.html[8/22/2012 1:15:17 PM]

submitting an item representing the Town for the Community Time Capsule. She announced that the Capsule will be
buried on May 7th and unearthed in the Spring of 2030. Ms. Klett said that a number of other activities are also
planned for the commemoration including a nostalgic look back at the D'Esopo family roots. She said that a number of
various Town groups will be participating in the program including the Historical Society, school programs, and
service organizations.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Councilor Montinieri moved "TO REMOVE ITEMS B.2.a AND B.2.b FROM THE TABLE", seconded by
Councilor Forrest. All Councilors present, including the Chairperson, voted AYE. The motion passed 6-0-0.

HEARING

Thomas Wraight, 22 Coleman Road, voiced his concern over the confusion of information made available to the
residents and what spin is being placed upon the information. He said that what was provided clearly to the electorate
of Wethersfield when they voted on the referendum was the explanatory text stating that property owners adjacent to
the new sidewalks would pay 50% of the cost of the sidewalks. Mr. Wraight said that historically, more than 90% of
Wethersfield sidewalks have been installed as a part of the subdivision regulations of the Town Planning & Zoning
Commission which call for the developer to install sidewalks and include the cost for such in the sale value of the
property. This indicates that these sidewalks are paid 100% by the buyers of the properties. Mr. Wraight questioned
whether the Town Planning & Zoning Commission has been consulted, as he considers this to be an infringement on
their authority to establish subdivision regulations. He said that he feels that the Council can do whatever they want to
do. Mr. Wraight said that the proposal for the Town to pay 100% of the costs is admirable; however it is unfair to the
majority of property owners in Town, including those on Middletown Avenue, who have already paid for their
sidewalks. Mr. Wraight questioned why sidewalks need to be installed on both sides of Two Rod Highway. He said
that money could be saved by finishing the installation on the south side only and not installing sidewalks on the north
side at all. Mr. Wraight said that he has concern for the senior citizens living on Midwell who will be burdened by the
cost of the sidewalks. He said that the only way he can support a 50/50 split on Midwell is to require that property
owners who are 62 years or older pay 100%.

George Oickle, 224 Clearfield Road, said that he personally feels that homeowners should not receive free sidewalks
from the Town. He said that all small costs need to be watched in light of the significant tax increases occurring in
Town. Mr. Oikle said that the Planning & Zoning Commission has not discussed the issue; however, as a member of
the committee, he reiterated Mr. Wraight's comments that Wethersfield has historically had sidewalk installation take
place as part of subdivision development and charges for such assessed to the homeowners. Mr. Oikle commented that
any ordinance may have a major precedent effect on subdivision development; therefore, this issue should be referred
to the P&Z Commission for advice. Mr. Oikle said that, under administrative subdivision regulations, the Commission
requires developers to put sidewalks on both sides of the street and exemption can only be made by a 3/4 vote (7 out
of 9) of the commissioners. He said that this exemption has taken place frequently in recent years. Mr. Oikle said that
he; however, supports sidewalks on both sides of the street.

Kelly Weinberg, 480 Brimfield Road, spoke in support of the installation of sidewalks on Mapleside Drive due to
safety issues relating to Emerson Williams School. Ms. Weinberg said that she understands that the cost could present
a hardship for some property owners and that the Town should take this into consideration. She suggested that options
for payment be considered such as a payment plan or even discounts for certain property owners. Ms. Weinberg said
that the children walking to and from Emerson Williams School deserve a safe environment.

Tony Rooney, 75 Two Rod Highway, stated that he lives on the north side of Two Rod Highway where there are
thirteen lots without sidewalks. He said that three lots on the south side do not have sidewalks. He said that he has seen
people walking in the street even when there are sidewalks available for them.

Aurelio Interlandi, 249 Willow Street, said that he feels singled out for sidewalk installation on Willow Street.

Darlene Achilli, 39 Mapleside Drive, read from a letter written by Kay Diamond of 135 Mapleside Drive. Ms.
Diamond made a plea in her letter for the Council and other Town residents to consider the plight of the west side of



Regular Meeting Minutes - March 7, 2005

file:///C|/Users/craig.CORP/Documents/Teleport%20Downloads/wethersfieldct_tc/wethersfieldct.com/TC/2005/2005-03-07r.html[8/22/2012 1:15:17 PM]

Mapleside Drive. She said that the majority of these residents are senior citizens on fixed incomes and it should not be
assumed that they can afford to pick up any portion of the costs of the sidewalks. Ms. Diamond questions why parents
continue to choose Mapleside Drive as their children's' drop off site instead of the using the designated area at the
Emerson Williams School. Ms. Diamond asked in her letter how the Town plans to address the many issues existing on
Mapleside Drive and urged the Council not to inflict further monetary strife on the residents of Mapleside Drive. Ms.
Achille said that the senior citizens should be given a break in paying the costs of the sidewalk installation.

Joe Sidlik, 38 Two Rod Highway, said that he lives on the south side of the street with a 200 foot front. He said that he
is on a fixed income and it will be difficult for him to pay for the walks. He urged that the Town pay for the
installation of the sidewalks.

Cindy Zuerblis, 119 Two Rod Highway, said that just because a resident is under the age of sixty-two, it should not be
assumed that they can afford everything coming their way. She said that the cost of sidewalk installation will be a
hardship for her and her neighbor as well. Ms. Zuerblis questioned why Two Rod Highway was chosen for sidewalk
installation since the street is not near a school; children in this area are bussed to and from school. She said that the
ordinance stated that property owners "may pay" a part of the sidewalk installation.

John Steffick, 218 Dale Road, commented that many of the existing sidewalks near him are of little use to anyone
other than the elderly. He said that the children walking to school in his area do not use the streets that have sidewalks,
but rather walk out in the road. Mr. Steffik said that there is little pedestrian and automobile traffic on Westside Drive
during the course of the day. He said that, due to the sidewalk installation, he would lose a number of hedges on his
property and two sections of vinyl fencing on which he recently spent $6,000 to have installed. Mr. Steffik said that
there is no logic behind the sidewalk installation.

Tom Harley, 289 Cedar Street, spoke on behalf of his mother-in-law who lives at the corner of Wells Road and
Mapleside Drive. Mr. Harley said that he still questions the need for sidewalks on Mapleside Drive and more
importantly, why stick the property owners with the bill for such. Mr. Harley said that he is not against sidewalks, but
feels that the negative aspects being forced upon the property owners outweigh the positive. He said that the adjacent
property owners should not have to pay for the installation of the sidewalks as they will already be saddled with new
liability and maintenance costs. Mr. Harley stated that the sidewalk, if installed, should be on the east side of the road
due to drainage and other issues. He finished his comments by pointing out that these are Town sidewalks, built by the
Town on Town property and asked why the bill is being sent to the property owner next-door.

Ken Sokolowski, 79 Main Street, stated that Town obligations should be equitably spread across the entire populous
and that this consideration should pertain to sidewalks. He said that the sidewalks throughout Town are not for the
exclusive use of the abutting property owner since they are Town property and should be paid for by the Town. Mr.
Sokolowski stated that so charging any abutting property owner is discriminatory and unfair. He said that costs need to
be spread fairly to all tax payers. Mr. Sokolowski urged the Council to eliminate any and all such unfair practices of
assessing an individual residential property owner the direct and discriminatory cost for the installation and repair of a
Town sidewalk. He said that if such a discriminatory practice is mandatory, the Council should work to repeal this
portion of the Town Code or ordinances, and if such a discriminatory practice is optional, the Council should ignore it
now for the relief of the residential property owners.

George A. Ruhe, 956 Cloverdale Circle, spoke as Vice-President of the Wethersfield Taxpayers Association, Inc.
commenting on the language of the resolution regarding the original Ordinance's silence as to the monetary obligation
of the abutting property owner and to the explanatory text of the Ordinance. He said that the inconsistency between the
two could either be that it wasn't done right or that someone is trying to do someone a favor. Mr. Ruhe said that the
sidewalk ordinance goes back to the 1960's and since its approval it is required that all new housing have sidewalks
installed by the developer or owners of the property being developed, except where applications were made to the
P&Z Commission for a variance. Mr. Ruhe said that if houses were built prior to the ordinance and sidewalks are to be
installed, the Town should pay for them; however, if homeowners want sidewalks and the homes were built
subsequent to the ordinance, the homeowners should pay 100% of the installation cost. Mr. Ruhe said that the sidewalk
ordinance effective date should be used as the criteria for payment of installation costs. Mr. Ruhe said that the Council
needs to weigh carefully the hardships that will be inflicted on many citizens of Wethersfield.



Regular Meeting Minutes - March 7, 2005

file:///C|/Users/craig.CORP/Documents/Teleport%20Downloads/wethersfieldct_tc/wethersfieldct.com/TC/2005/2005-03-07r.html[8/22/2012 1:15:17 PM]

Mark Bruks, 69 Mapleside Drive, commented that he would like further clarification on the sidewalk issue on
Mapleside Drive. He said that the passage of the referendum was done without real knowledge being provided to the
residents expected to incur the burden. Mr. Brooks said that the maintenance of the sidewalk, if installed on the west
side of the street, will be brutal due to drainage issues. He also questioned the amount of usage that will occur. Mr.
Brooks recommended that the entire street split the cost of the sidewalk installation rather than just the residents on the
side on which it is installed. He said that he would like to be informed of the approximate proposed cost to each
homeowner.

Barbara Rooney, 75 Two Rod Highway, stated that the driveways along her street were affected a number of years ago
when Two Rod Highway was widened and she asked if the driveways will be cut into when the sidewalks are
installed.

Ying Qi Jiang, 45 Mapleside Drive, commented that she has received three letters from the Town regarding the
sidewalk installation. She said that one letter stated that the property owner would pay 100%; the second letter said that
the property owner would pay 50%, and she feels that the main purpose of these letters is to ask the residents for
money. Ms. Ying said that Wethersfield is like a big family and the Council never offered to have a meeting with the
residents for the purpose of discussing the sidewalk issue. She said that it is not right that there was no meeting held to
discuss the whole issue before the Town sent out letters asking for money. Ms. Ying said that she did not ask for a
sidewalk and it is not her property; therefore she should not have to pay for it. She said that the leaders of the Town
really have to think about this. She said that the Town should consider donations rather than forcing residents to pay.

Robert Young, 20 Coppermill Road, said that he agrees with Mr. Ruhe's comments that if neighborhoods were
developed some time ago and there were variances granted to not have sidewalks, this needs to be investigated. He
suggested that the issue be sent to the Planning and Zoning Commission to have them make a decision as to whether
the variance is lifted or not.

No one else wished to speak and the Chairperson declared the hearing segment closed.

GENERAL COMMENTS

Mary Dobruck, 689 Folly Brook Boulevard, commented that the publication of the sewage issue was for selfish
reasons. She said that she wants her home to be normal and sellable. Ms. Dobruck said that she has no political agenda,
motivations, or aspirations. She said that all the tests being conducted on Cottone Field should have been done before
the field was laid instead of now. Ms. Dobruck said that she has learned that, from a theoretical model, Cottone Field
should have helped her situation rather than harmed it, and whether this is true or not, remains to be seen. Ms.
Dobruck reported on the MDC trunk line testing and the results of such. She said that there is clear water flowing into
the sewer behind the trail from two pipes behind the High School fields. She said that one pipe is a permitted pipe
from the concession and the MDC and the Town are currently unsure of the origin point of the second permitted pipe.
Ms. Dobruck said that the MDC cameras are too large to go into this pipe; however the MDC has on call a contractor
who can survey these small pipes and she requested that the Council direct the Town Manager to have the contractor
camera survey the two lines to determine the point of origin of the second permitted pipe. She said that the contractor
should also look into what is wrong with the concession stand line before the Spring rains. Ms. Dobruck said that the
MDC has reported that infiltration and inflow contribute significantly to the capacity problems of the Folly Brook
system. She reported that the Folly Brook trunk line carries ten times more water on a wet day than on a dry day (2.8
million gallons vs. 25 million gallons) and this surcharge contributes to the Wethersfield Cove problem. Ms. Dobruck
requested that the Council create a task force consisting of representatives from the Town Engineering Department,
MDC, Council, Town residents from the CAC, and ordinary citizens charged to create a long-term plan to address the
Wethersfield infiltration and inflow issue. She said that Wethersfield could become a model for other Connecticut
communities.

Ron Rodd, 88 Westway, voiced his concerns about the issue of the overflow and sewer backup of the Folly Brook
trunk line. Mr. Rodd provided an update of the two presentations on the issue which he spoke of at previous Council
meetings. Mr. Rodd commented on the recent articles appearing in the Wethersfield Post quoting both him and
Councilor Forrest. Mr. Rodd read the e-mail message regarding Cottone Field comments made at the last Council



Regular Meeting Minutes - March 7, 2005

file:///C|/Users/craig.CORP/Documents/Teleport%20Downloads/wethersfieldct_tc/wethersfieldct.com/TC/2005/2005-03-07r.html[8/22/2012 1:15:17 PM]

meeting which he sent to all Councilors and the Town Manager and has yet to receive a reply. Mr. Rodd reported that
he took a walk on the Heritage Trail earlier this evening and could hear water gushing beneath the manhole covers. He
said that there is a direct correlation to Cottone Field and the Council needs to take the responsibility to act on it.

Barbara Ruhe, 79 Main Street, spoke as both a Wethersfield resident and as Chairperson of the Human Rights and
Opportunities Commission. Ms. Ruhe said that she would like to have recorded in the memory of the Town, the life of
Lemuel Rodney Custis, a thirty year citizen of Wethersfield, who died on February 24 at the age of 89. Ms. Ruhe said
that Mr. Custis was a member of the first class of the Tuskegee Airmen, a black air corps ordered by President
Roosevelt. Ms. Ruhe said that Mr. Custis flew some ninety-eight combat missions and was honored for his heroism.
She said that over 1,000 pilots came out of the Tuskegee air program and that the program benefited more than just
citizens of color. Ms. Ruhe requested that the minutes of the meeting note the extraordinary life of this modest man,
Lemuel Rodney Custis.

Tao Kuang, 45 Mapleside Drive, commented that the voters passed the referendum for sidewalks without knowing
clearly who would pay for the sidewalk installation. He said that all the citizens of Wethersfield should share the cost
of the sidewalk installation.

Rick Garrey, 35 Harding Street, spoke on behalf of the Board of Directors of Wethersfield Television. He thanked the
Infrastructure Committee for all their hard work in finding a new location for Wethersfield TV, Town Manager Bonnie
Therrien for assisting in this as well and for obtaining a lease, and Councilor Czernicki for her help and support in
attending the Wethersfield TV meetings. Mr. Garrey stated that the move into the Community Center will be of great
benefit to them and to the Town. Mr. Garrey said that Robbins Barstow, who was unable to attend tonight's meeting,
wished to have it voiced that he supports the move and is very excited about it.

Robert Young, 20 Coppermill Road, commented on the overflow and sewer backup issues of the Folly Brook. He
asked where the Town and MDC Engineers are when it comes to calculating the capacity of the Brook as Ms. Dobruck
has. Mr. Young said that he could not understand the rationale of Councilor Forrest's comments at the last meeting
regarding Cottone Field contributing to the problem. After hearing Ms. Dobruck's comments on the issue, Mr. Young
said that it's a shame that the Town is adding to the problems at the Cove. Mr. Young commented on the lack of
disaster backup for the Town's computer system, although there is some sort of off-site periodic backup system. He
questioned why Finance Director Lisa Hancock hasn't pushed more strongly for a disaster backup system, since the
Town seems to find money for all kinds of other items. Mr. Young commented that property tax reform is just a
shifting of where the money comes from; it does not save money.

Dennis Dobruck, 689 Folly Brook Boulevard, said that he feels that Councilor Forrest did not mean anything by his
comments at the last meeting and that things are getting too personal. He said that we need to stop pointing fingers or
nothing will get done. Mr. Dobruck said that if everyone would work together instead of fighting with each other
things would go better. He said that the bottom line is money and until the Town has money, the drainage problems
will remain.

Ken Sokolowski, 79 Main Street, said that before Cottone Field was rebuilt, it was muddy in wet weather and both it
and the Wethersfield Shopping Center were designed to shed water. He said that every drop of water that falls on
Cottone Field leaves the field by way of a twelve inch drain surrounding the field which empties into the southwest
corner of the field. Mr. Sokolowski said that a heavy gauge plastic underneath the artificial surface was applied to
prevent water from getting down into the soil. He said that on top of the heavy gauge plastic are ribbon drains designed
to remove water to the perimeter drainage system. On top of the ribbon drains is approximately nine inches of gravel
mix and then the synthetic turf. He said that the system was designed to remove every drop of water, and it does just
that.

Kelly Weinberg, 480 Brimfield Road, said that she has gained quite an education by learning the facts related to the
sidewalk installation issues. She said that she understands the hardship and it was never her intent to cause these
hardships when suggesting that sidewalks be installed. Ms. Weinberg thinks that it would be great for the whole Town
to pay for the sidewalks since they are being installed for safety issues and the residents on Mapleside Drive did not
ask for the sidewalks. She said that maybe the Town should consider setting new precedents for the installation of



Regular Meeting Minutes - March 7, 2005

file:///C|/Users/craig.CORP/Documents/Teleport%20Downloads/wethersfieldct_tc/wethersfieldct.com/TC/2005/2005-03-07r.html[8/22/2012 1:15:17 PM]

sidewalks.

George A. Ruhe, 956 Cloverdale Circle, spoke as Vice-President of the Wethersfield Taxpayers Association, Inc. Mr.
Ruhe commented on the costs associated with the referendum required by the settlement of November 30, 2004. He
said that the costs have been reduced to approximately $12,500 rather than the 2.24 times greater amount originally
predicted. Mr. Ruhe says that this raises questions as to the motives for tossing out such high amounts. He said that the
Wethersfield Taxpayers Association, Inc. feels that $12,500 is a small price to pay to secure and protect the
neighborhoods of Wethersfield from further deterioration as it pertains to the upcoming referendum. Mr. Ruhe said that
the Association is pleased with the rapid response to the blight issue raised at the last Council meeting and that they
will continue to monitor the issue. Mr. Ruhe commented that there appears to be shills arriving at Council meetings
lauding the Council for the wonderful job they're doing and attacking the Wethersfield Taxpayers Association, Inc.
because they continue to hold the elected officials accountable for their actions, some of which are believed to be not
in the best interest of the community. Mr. Ruhe discussed the difference in the meaning of acrimony and acrimonious
and commented on Councilor Adil's and Councilor Forrest's behavior at the last meeting during the time Mr. Orsini
was speaking. He said that their behavior shows a disinterest in what the citizenry has to say. Mr. Ruhe said that
Deputy Mayor Karangekis has on occasion received phone calls and left the Council Chambers during the public
comment segment of the meeting. Mr. Ruhe informed the Council that the community is watching.

Brendan Flynn, 109 Springdale Road, commented that sidewalks provide a public benefit to the community and it is
imperative of the community as a whole to share the costs of the sidewalks. Mr. Flynn said that he supports the Town
bearing 100% of the sidewalk installation costs as there will be other obligations placed on the property owners with
regard to maintenance.

Thomas Wraight, 22 Coleman Road, stated that he hopes that the Council remembers the vast majority of property
owners in Town who have already paid for their own sidewalks. He said that Two Rod Highway does not need
sidewalks on both sides of the street, but rather on the south side only. Mr. Wraight said that the Council needs to take
into consideration the age and monetary position of the residents on Midwell when making an assessment for costs.

No one else wished to speak and the Chairperson declared the Public Comments segment closed.

COUNCIL REPORTS & COMMENTS

Councilor Fortunato reported that there was recently a joint meeting of the Infrastructure and Public Safety
Committees to discuss parking on Main Street. She said that it is a problem that is being followed up on and monitored
by Town staff.

Councilor Montinieri reported that the Strategic Planning Committee continues to meet and that they have a draft at
this point.

Councilor Czernicki said that she is happy to see that the Health District addressed the blight issues brought forth from
a citizen to the Wethersfield Taxpayers Association, Inc. She asked what type of mechanisms are in place for Town
staff to observe these same types of issues and generate a process to work with the property owners to remedy the
situations. Councilor Czernicki said that she would rather see the initial action come from the Town rather than
individual residents. Town Manager Bonnie Therrien said that the Town staff is proactive; however the issues reported
were found in the back of locations where Town staff tends not to go because there is not enough staff to constantly be
doing this. The Town Manager has asked Paul Hutcheon and Brian O'Connor to keep up with the businesses that are
lax. Councilor Czernicki suggested that copies not be made at all if the copier is not able to print legible copies.

Councilor Fortunato commented that she has experienced a number of viruses on e-mails coming through the Town
server and therefore she does not check her e-mail. She asked the Town Manager if, because of this, the service has
been suspended. The Town Manager said that she did not hear back from all Councilors as to who wishes to continue
using the current system. She said currently the Data Services staff is working on bringing the website addresses in-
house. Councilor Fortunato said that she wants the public to know that, while technology is wonderful, there are
inherent risks that she is not willing to take. She said that she would prefer that the public contact her by telephone
instead. Councilor Fortunato stated that she attended Wethersfield High School's production of West Side Story and



Regular Meeting Minutes - March 7, 2005

file:///C|/Users/craig.CORP/Documents/Teleport%20Downloads/wethersfieldct_tc/wethersfieldct.com/TC/2005/2005-03-07r.html[8/22/2012 1:15:17 PM]

was impressed with the talented pool of students. She encouraged the public to attend the show.

Councilor Adil commented on the possible future updates for technology in the Council Chambers and that the
Technology Committee recommends that the room is at least wired for future technological upgrades that would save
on delivery and paper costs. Councilor Adil said that he vehemently disagrees with Mr. Ruhe's comments that speakers
do not receive respect from the Council. He said that respect is earned.

Councilor Hemmann said that she also forfeited her e-mail a number of months ago due to viruses and she has
therefore not had access to any mail sent to her in this format. She said that upgraded technology in the Council
Chambers would be very nice at least in the planning stage in order to enable technology in the future.

Chairperson Morin offered his condolences on behalf of the Council to Mr. Orsini for his recent loss in the family.
Chairperson Morin agreed with Councilor Czernicki that he'd like to see the Town Staff pay more attention to blighted
properties; however he also likes to see that the public is on top of this and brings it to someone's attention. He said
that he also likes to see that there is a quick resolution to the issues brought forward. Chairperson Morin said that the
Town Manager and Town Engineer have been working diligently with the residents and the MDC to address and
resolve the Folly Brook drainage issue. Chairperson Morin announced that Fire Chief Clark has resigned, but will
remain on the Fire Department. He said that the Chief's years of service as Fire Chief are greatly appreciated.
Chairperson Morin thanked Deputy Fire Chief Mark Mader who will be taking on the role as acting Fire Chief until a
new Chief is appointed.

COUNCIL ACTION

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Roof for the Olson House

Councilor Fortunato moved "TO APPROVE THE USE OF COMMUNITY CENTER SPACE, THE NATURE
CENTER REPTILE ROOM, OFFICE AND DARKROOM, BY CHANNEL 14 AND TO AUTHORIZE THE
TOWN MANAGER TO PREPARE A PLAN FOR USE AND LEASING OF THE OLSON HOUSE", seconded
by Councilor Czernicki.

Town Manager Bonnie Therrien explained that there are many renovation needs at the Olson House location; therefore
she worked together with the Channel 14 crew and Kathy Bagley to find a new location. The Community Center was
considered since the Nature Center is moving out. She said that this is a win/win situation for everyone.

Councilor Adil commended Kathy Bagley and the Infrastructure Committee for keeping the Nature Center front room
available for other usages that would generate income.

Councilor Czernicki said that it is a fine idea to allow space for Channel 14 at the Community Center because it
provides the opportunity for Wethersfield's senior and youth population to explore possibilities in broadcast and all
aspects of production. She said that this will provide for an important educational tool and she thanked all for their
efforts put forth for this plan.

Chairperson Morin thanked the members of Channel 14 for their efforts and diligence. He said that this move is a
positive one for many people.

All Councilors present, including the Chairperson, voted AYE. The motion passed 8-0-0.

New Sidewalk Installation - Homeowners Cost

Councilor Forrest moved "TO AUTHORIZE THE FOLLOWING SIDEWALK PROJECTS:

MAPLESIDE DRIVE, WEST SIDE, WELLS ROAD TO DALE ROAD $85,000
EMERSON WILLIAMS PARKING LOT, COMPLETE GAP $10,000



Regular Meeting Minutes - March 7, 2005

file:///C|/Users/craig.CORP/Documents/Teleport%20Downloads/wethersfieldct_tc/wethersfieldct.com/TC/2005/2005-03-07r.html[8/22/2012 1:15:17 PM]

WILLOW STREET, WEST SIDE, COMPLETE GAPS $60,000
BOTH SIDES OF TWO ROD HIGHWAY, OLD RESERVOIR TO HIGHLAND STREET $75,000
TOTAL $230,000

AND TO SET A ZERO ASSESSMENT FOR THE AFFECTED PROPERTY OWNERS", seconded by Deputy
Mayor Karangekis.

Councilor Adil asked Mr. Turner why the Town staff feels that both sides of Two Rod Highway need to be done. Mr.
Turner said that it was a combination of both Town staff and Police staff because most of the children walking come
from the north and it made sense to sidewalk both sides. He said that most of the south side is done because of the
development of Amato Circle and Amato Drive. Councilor Adil said that he polled people in that neighborhood who
voiced that they would be happy with just one side completed, and he agrees.

Councilor Montinieri said that one of the reasons for sidewalks on both sides of Two Rod Highway had to do with
bussing issues which would create friction in the neighborhood. Having sidewalks on both sides would provide for
consistency in transportation.

Councilor Adil said that he can understand Councilor Montinieri's point, yet feels that it could create a hardship for the
families on the north side of the street. He said that he still feels that only the south side should have sidewalks.

Councilor Forrest said that there has been input on various scales relating to safety, auto traffic, walking traffic, etc and
a comprehensive study was conducted to determine sidewalk installation. He said that the assessment for the costs has
historically been a hit or miss without a specific pattern. Councilor Forrest said that without a pattern, he has to think
about what is fair for the individuals and the Town. He said he sees the sidewalks in the same way he sees Town
roads; a piece of transportation for which the Town has to come together and bear the costs.

Councilor Czernicki asked Mr. Turner if there truly are impediments on the west side of Mapleside Drive. Mr. Turner
said that some of the impediments are found on both sides; however utility poles and fire hydrants exist solely on the
west side. He said that, at this time, it is uncertain whether or not they will be impacted by the construction. He said
that east side vs. west side was carefully researched. The west side is higher than the road and some of the homes on
the east side are lower than the road. He said that sidewalks on the east side would cause a dam effect catching water
and causing icing problems in driveways and front yards. He said that the west side has a fairly good slope and water
will run across the sidewalk into the street gutter as it should. Councilor Czernicki asked what driveway cutting will be
required. Mr. Turner said that typically the cutting is minimized to a six foot wide cut which would have a four foot
sidewalk and one foot on each side of patching. He said that sometimes the entire apron down to the street is replaced
and this is part of the project costs. Councilor Czernicki stated that she is concerned about the explanatory text
provided to voters for the referendum which stated that the cost would be split 50/50. She said that it now will never be
known how residents may have voted had the text said that the costs would be covered 100% by the Town and the
spirit of the explanatory text has been violated. Councilor Czernicki said that she is upset that the Planning & Zoning
Commission has not discussed this issue and concerned that a precedent will be set. She said that she would like to see
the issue referred to P&Z so that they can weigh in on it. Councilor Czernicki commented on the traffic issues with
parents using Mapleside Drive as a drop off and pick up site rather than the beautifully reconstructed driveway at
Emerson Williams School. She said there are some real safety issues for the children who walk on Mapleside Drive
and that if parents were more responsible in dropping off and picking up their children in the manner which has been
safely provided them; part of this safety issue would be resolved. She said that the Town has gone out of its way to
spend money to make something safe and the parents who do not choose to adhere to the proper procedures should
possibly be ticketed, tagged, and fined. Councilor Czernicki said that she still questions Mapleside Drive's west side
vs. east side, Two Rod Highway's two sides or one side, and most importantly the possibility of a precedent being set
by not having the P&Z weigh in on the issue before a decision is made.

Councilor Czernicki moved "TO TABLE THE NEW SIDEWALK RESOLUTION UNTIL THE COUNCIL
RECEIVES A RESPONSE ON THE ISSUE FROM THE PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION", seconded
by Councilor Hemmann.



Regular Meeting Minutes - March 7, 2005

file:///C|/Users/craig.CORP/Documents/Teleport%20Downloads/wethersfieldct_tc/wethersfieldct.com/TC/2005/2005-03-07r.html[8/22/2012 1:15:17 PM]

Councilor Forrest stated that he does not want to table the issue at this time since there has not been a full discussion
and he would still like to hear from the Town Manager.

All Councilors present, including the Chairperson, voted NAY. Councilor Czernicki and Councilor Hemmann voted
AYE. The motion failed 2-6-0.

Councilor Fortunato asked the Town Manager if it is mandatory that the issue go to P&Z or if it is the Council's
discretion to refer it. Town Manager Bonnie Therrien said that the role of P&Z is not to weigh in on the 50% vs.
100%, but rather to advise under 8-24 where the sidewalks are to be installed. She said that it is up to the Council to
decide on the financial aspect of the project.

Councilor Fortunato asked if the Council's vote tonight locks the Town into the projects as listed in the motion or is
there the possibility that it can be changed if Town staff finds that it does not make sense to do all of Two Rod
Highway.

The Town Manager said that if the homeowners are to pay any portion of the costs, there must be a public hearing to
inform them of the amount of the assessment; therefore the Council needs to be pretty sure where they're going with
the project. She said that a little more moving room is allowed if the project is to be paid 100% by the Town.

Councilor Fortunato said that the two issues are the projects to be done and the payment of them.

Councilor Adil agreed that it is a good idea to obtain an opinion from the P&Z with regard to the payment of the
project.

Councilor Czernicki said that the original motion clearly describes the desire of some folks and also clearly spells out
the projects to be done. She said that what she is hearing from Councilors now is to pass the motion and later possibly
change the scope of the motion. She said that this is the same as putting 50/50 in the explanatory text to get the
referendum passed and then change it however we want or getting voters' signatures on petitions, having them
approved by the Town Clerk and then having the Town Attorney tell the Council they can do something else to get
what they want. She questioned whether the Council has the moral obligation to follow what has been put out and
approved rather than change it as it pleases them.

Councilor Forrest said that he totally disagrees with Councilor Czernicki and that what is going on is a nice debate to
decide the best way to proceed for the Town. He said that Councilor Adil was simply asking the question if the
assessment could be set now and then later have the scope of the project change.

Councilor Montinieri said that the Council has two issues before them; the assessment of costs, and the specific
projects themselves which have been approved by the voters. She explained that the explanatory text with 50/50 costs
was sent out to the homeowners, many of whom voiced this to be a hardship on them and then the ordinance was
reviewed to determine whether the homeowners had to be charged or not. Councilor Montinieri said that the purpose of
tonight's hearing is to revisit this because as the project has evolved it was decided that it may not be a good idea to
burden the homeowners. Councilor Montinieri explained that if the sidewalks were installed on the east side of
Mapleside Drive, the crossing guard would have to cross the children twice and the Police Department is
recommending that this not be done as two crossing guards would be required. Councilor Montinieri said that she is
not in favor of assessing the costs to the affected homeowners, but rather to the voters who approved the projects. She
said that the Town Engineer presented a big map with high priority streets marked in hot pink and these are the streets
that were chosen due to a number of criteria.

Town Manager Bonnie Therrien said that the P&Z did receive and voted favorably on the list of sidewalks. She said
that all bonding referendum questions have to go to them.

Councilor Hemmann asked what the Town's obligation is on the explanatory text that was approved by Bond Counsel
and distributed to the voters. She said that it's a shame that the Council rushed through the process without first getting
more discussion from the public. Town Manager Bonnie Therrien said that the Town Attorney has spoken with Bond
Counsel and was informed that the bond ordinance takes precedence which states that it is up to the Council to set the



Regular Meeting Minutes - March 7, 2005

file:///C|/Users/craig.CORP/Documents/Teleport%20Downloads/wethersfieldct_tc/wethersfieldct.com/TC/2005/2005-03-07r.html[8/22/2012 1:15:17 PM]

parameters.

Councilor Adil amended his previous comments and said that he now supports the original motion as is with both sides
of Two Rod Highway having sidewalks installed.

Councilor Forrest said that he agrees with Councilor Montinieri's comments and that he sat with her at many
Infrastructure Committee meetings discussing Mapleside's east vs. west side and the two sides of Two Rod Highway.
He said that the Committee came to a conclusion on the project and decided that it should move forward. Councilor
Forrest said that he looks forward to and supports the Town moving forward with this project.

Councilor Czernicki moved "TO AMEND THE ORIGINAL MOTION TO STATE THAT FOR RESIDENTS
OVER THE AGE OF SIXTY-TWO, THE 100% PAYMENT WOULD ONLY BE FOR THOSE WHO MEET
THE CONNPACE ASSET TEST", seconded by Councilor Hemmann. All Councilors present, including the
Chairperson, voted NAY. Councilor Czernicki and Councilor Hemmann voted AYE. The motion failed 2-6-0.

Chairperson Morin submitted to the Town Clerk a letter from the Kuzma family which expressed their desire to have
sidewalks on both sides of Two Rod Highway. They also expressed concern over some safety issues and stated that
they are not in favor of homeowners being assessed for the cost of the sidewalks. Chairperson Morin said that he
received a letter from the D'Aprile family who has concerns about damage to their property with the installation of the
sidewalks. Chairperson Morin verified with Mr. Turner that the sidewalks are being installed on the Town's right-of-
way and therefore there should not be any private property physical impediments onto the Town's property. Mr. Turner
said that there may be instances where lawn irrigation systems extend to the curb and over the past ten years
homeowners have been required to file a Hold Harmless Agreement which states that anything requiring relocation
would be the homeowners' responsibility. Chairperson Morin said that he supports the project and not charging the
residents for it. He said that he does not fear setting a precedent.

Councilor Czernicki clarified that the motion and the second are for the projects as listed. Chairperson Morin said that
it is for the projects as read by Councilor Forrest. Councilor Czernicki asked if the intent is to change it after it is
passed. Chairperson Morin said that the intent is to follow through with the project as read. Chairperson Morin asked
Mr. Turner to look for the least amount of impact on properties when designing the projects. He said that the ordinance
be reviewed to determine if the 50% should remain in it.

All Councilors present, including the Chairperson, voted AYE. Councilor Czernicki and Councilor Hemmann voted
NAY. The motion passed 6-2-0.

OTHER BUSINESS

Economic Development Loan Program

Councilor Adil moved "TO APPROVE THE BUSINESS BEAUTIFICATION LOAN PROGRAM AS
PROPOSED BY THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND IMPROVEMENT COMMISSION, ATTACHED,
AND TO AUTHORIZE THE USE OF $25,000 IN CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUNDS AND $15,000 IN
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPEARTMENT FUNDS FOR PROGRAM START UP", seconded by
Councilor Forrest.

Councilor Adil said that this is a loan program for use in Old Wethersfield and the Berlin Turnpike. He said that there
is also a grant program for fa&ccedil;ade improvements along the Silas Deane being worked on by the Town for use
with the STEAP monies received from the State. He said that between the two programs, no area of Town is being
overlooked. Councilor Adil said that although this is a small amount of money, it is a start on something that has to be
done.

Councilor Hemmann clarified that the money is currently available in the budget. Town Manager Bonnie Therrien said
that it is for this project and that the Town is still waiting for the STEAP money from the State.

Town Manager Bonnie Therrien said that this has been discussed for a long time and the EDIC, their sub-committee,



Regular Meeting Minutes - March 7, 2005

file:///C|/Users/craig.CORP/Documents/Teleport%20Downloads/wethersfieldct_tc/wethersfieldct.com/TC/2005/2005-03-07r.html[8/22/2012 1:15:17 PM]

and Mr. Gillespie worked together very diligently to determine the best way to do this. She explained that there will be
a 2% interest loan rate on a maximum of $15,000 and the loans will be repaid over a five year term. She said that
applicants must invest 10% of the project costs.

Councilor Montinieri commented that this is a wonderful idea and she is pleased to have the Design Review
Committee on board to work on this project.

Councilor Czernicki asked if local banks have been asked to take part in this program. Town Manager Bonnie
Therrien said that a meeting was held with many of the local banks and there have been no positive responses
received.

Mr. Gillespie said that the offer was extended to all banks in Town and they all politely passed. He said that the intent
is to go back to the semi-interested banks after the start of the program and let him know that the Town has stepped up
to the amount of $40,000 and that may entice them to buy into the program.

Councilor Czernicki asked Mr. Gillespie if he expects the funds to be used up immediately. Mr. Gillespie said that he
has spoken with property owners who are debating whether they will go through the Town or another loan program.
He said that there is a huge amount of interest on the Silas Deane Highway, less on the Berlin Turnpike, and even less
in Old Wethersfield because of the requirements of the Historic District. He said that he intends to send out an
informational flyer to all potentially qualifying property owners. Councilor Czernicki asked how the cost of the flyers
would be covered. Mr. Gillespie said that the marketing of the program would come through his normal office
expenses which have been built into his budget. Councilor Czernicki asked if there is an evaluation tool in place to
gauge the success of the program as she doesn't see $15,000 as being enough to do a full job for most properties. Mr.
Gillespie said that he does not anticipate this either, but rather views this program as a gap or aid to a property owner
working on an improvement project.

Chairperson Morin said that the EDIC is firmly behind this program and he appreciates the work of them and the
Town staff as well.

All Councilors present, including the Chairperson, voted AYE. The motion passed 8-0-0.

Police Canine Unit

Deputy Mayor Karangekis moved "TO APPROVE A CANINE UNIT IN THE POLICE DEPARTMENT AND
TO APPROVE FUND RAISING AND THE ACCEPTANCE OF DONATIONS TO FUND THE EXPENSES
FOR ACQUISITION OF A DOG, RELATED EQUIPMENT, OUTFITTING OF A POLICE CRUISER AND
VETERINARY CARE", seconded by Councilor Fortunato.

Town Manager Bonnie Therrien explained that Chief Cetran brought this concept forward to her and it is an important
part of public safety. She said that she agrees that the animal does good work, but informed the Chief that it cannot cost
the Town anything and must be self-supporting.

Chief Cetran said that he is agreeable to the Police Department funding this on their own. He said that this is
something that the Police Department has been lacking for years and they lose a lot of potential suspects in waiting to
"borrow" the service from another community. He said that a police dog is essential in the narcotics realm and he
would like permission to move forward with the project.

Councilor Hemmann asked about damage to the Police car due to the dog and if the outfitted cruiser will need to be
replaced with another. She also asked what shift will be utilizing the dog. Chief Cetran said that the shift will be 4:00
p.m. to 12:00 a.m. Councilor Hemmann asked if the Officer will receive overtime if the dog is needed on another shift.
Chief Cetran said that he will receive overtime. Town Manager Bonnie Therrien explained that one vehicle will be
held back from being sold to cover the outfitted vehicle.

Deputy Mayor Karangekis stated that this is long overdue and there were many times when he was Chief that delays in
obtaining a dog hindered their efforts. He said that the dogs are a very important tool in the Police arsenal. Deputy



Regular Meeting Minutes - March 7, 2005

file:///C|/Users/craig.CORP/Documents/Teleport%20Downloads/wethersfieldct_tc/wethersfieldct.com/TC/2005/2005-03-07r.html[8/22/2012 1:15:17 PM]

Mayor Karangekis commended the Police Department for initiating this as it will be a plus for Wethersfield.

Councilor Fortunato asked if Double A Vet is willing to incur the cost of food and veterinary bills in addition to
volunteering to help take care of the dog. Chief Cetran said that they are. Councilor Fortunato asked if they have
indicated how long this support will be available. Officer Arduini said that Double A Vet has offered medical care for
the life of the program and they will provide food through donations they receive. Councilor Fortunato suggested that
a written memorandum of understanding be drafted with Double A Vet. She asked the Chief if he has an idea of how
many times the Town has had to use this service from another community. Chief Cetran said that the Department
could probably use an animal several times per week and there are a lot of pro-active uses for the dog, especially
relating to drugs.

Councilor Czernicki asked the Chief if the dog would be used during the day for services such as periodic school
locker "sniffs" and community outreach programs. Chief Cetran said that it would be used for this purpose and would
not be considered overtime as the schedule is flexible enough that the shift could be switched to daytime rather than
evening on those particular days. He said that overtime would occur if a major crime was committed.

All Councilors present, including the Chairperson, voted AYE. The motion passed 8-0-0.

Youth and Police Working Together Program Grant

Deputy Mayor Karangekis moved "TO AUTHORIZE THE APPLICATION TO THE STATE OF
CONNECTICUT OFFICE OF POLICY AND MANAGEMENT JUVENILE JUSTICE ADVISORY
COMMITTEE AND THE ACCEPTANCE OF A $10,000 GRANT TO DEVELOP A POLICE INTERACTING
WITH YOUTH PROGRAM AND TO PROVIDE YOUTH SPORTS ACTIVITIES IN PARTNERSHIP WITH
THE RICHARD M. KEANE FOUNDATION", seconded by Councilor Montinieri.

Town Manager Bonnie Therrien explained that Grants Manager Rae Ann Palmer located this grant and she has been in
touch with the Keane Foundation. She said that the Police Department and the Keane Foundation will work on after
school programs such as floor hockey and other sports activities.

Councilor Hemmann asked if this program will piggy back on the programs currently offered by the Police
Department. Town Manager Bonnie Therrien said that this will.

All Councilors present, including the Chairperson, voted AYE. The motion passed 8-0-0.

BIDS

Fire Sprinkler System Expansion - Town Hall/Library - Phase 2

Councilor Forrest moved "TO AWARD THE BID FOR TOWN HALL/LIBRARY SPRINKLER SYSTEM TO
HARTFORD SPRINKLER COMPANY, INC. AT A COST OF $99,600", seconded by Councilor Adil.

Town Manager Bonnie Therrien explained that the Town went out to bid for the fire sprinkler system for Town
Hall/Library renovation phase 2 and three bids were received. There was an investigation conducted into the
background of the low bidder and they planned to subcontract out the work; therefore the Building Committee and Mr.
Turner chose the second lowest bidder who has more experience with a large project such as this. She said that Finance
Director Hancock and Town Attorney Bradley both feel that there is enough justification to make this recommendation
to the Council.

Councilor Adil verified that $189,000 had been allocated for this. Town Manager Bonnie Therrien said that this is
correct.

All Councilors present, including the Chairperson, voted AYE. The motion passed 8-0-0.

ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS, APPOINTMENTS FOR INTRODUCTION



Regular Meeting Minutes - March 7, 2005

file:///C|/Users/craig.CORP/Documents/Teleport%20Downloads/wethersfieldct_tc/wethersfieldct.com/TC/2005/2005-03-07r.html[8/22/2012 1:15:17 PM]

None.

MINUTES

Councilor Forrest moved "TO ACCEPT THE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF FEBRUARY 12,
2005", seconded by Councilor Adil. All Councilors present, including the Chairperson, voted AYE. The motion passed
8-0-0.

Councilor Adil moved "TO ACCEPT THE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF FEBRUARY 22,
2005", seconded by Councilor Fortunato. All Councilors present, including the Chairperson, voted AYE. The motion
passed 8-0-0.

Councilor Montinieri moved "TO ACCEPT THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY
22, 2005", seconded by Councilor Forrest. All Councilors present, including the Chairperson, voted AYE. Councilor
Czernicki ABSTAINED. The motion passed 7-0-1.

ADJOURNMENT

At 10:00 p.m., Councilor Adil moved "TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION" seconded by Councilor
Czernicki. All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed 8-0-0.

Deputy Mayor Karangekis left the meeting at this time (10:00 p.m.).

At 10:06 p.m., Councilor Adil moved "TO ENTER BACK INTO THE REGULAR MEETING" seconded by
Councilor Fortunato. All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed 7-0-0.

At 10:06 p.m., Councilor Adil moved "TO ADJOURN THE MEETING" seconded by Councilor Forrest. All
Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed 7-0-0.

Dolores G. Sassano
Town Clerk

Approved by vote of Council 3/21/05


	Local Disk
	Regular Meeting Minutes - March 7, 2005


